
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Middleton Township Committee 

Date: Thursday, 18th June, 2020 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 

be excluded from the meeting. 

 

5   Minutes  3 - 7 

 To consider the minutes of the Township Committee meeting held on 

13 February 2020. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments  8 - 13 

 To consider the attached report from the Director of Resources.  

7   Middleton Township Funds Review  14 - 31 

 To consider the attached report of the Director of Neighbourhoods.  

 

Middleton Township Committee Members 
Councillor Malcolm Boriss Councillor Phil Burke 
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale Councillor Neil Emmott 
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Joinson 
Councillor Donna Martin E Councillor Kallum Nolan 
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Carol Wardle 
Councillor June West Councillor Donna Williams 
Councillor Peter Williams  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James – Governance and Committee Services 
 
Telephone: 01706 924711 
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday 13th February 2020 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Donna Williams (Chair); Councillors Boriss, Burke, Dale, 
Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Joinson, Martin, Rowbotham, Smith, Wardle and West 

 
OFFICERS: Steve Blezard (Assistant Director – Adult Care), Lauren Mason, Julie 
Simpson and Alan Webster (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and Alison James 
(Resources Directorate) 
 
Also in Attendance:  Inspector Wood (Greater Manchester Police) 32 members of 
the public. 
 
Apologies for Absence:  Councillor Kallum Nolan, Councillor Linda Robinson and 
Councillor Peter Williams 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
29 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
30 There were no urgent items of business. 
 
ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
31 There were no items for the Exclusion of Public and Press. 
 
MARVELLOUS MIDDLETON 
32 The Committee were shown a video presentation from pupils of St Peter’s RC 
Primary School entitled Marvellous Middleton. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That St Peters RC Primary School be thanked for their excellent video and 
that subject to obtaining the appropriate permissions, it be shared via the 
Council website. 

 
HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION 
33 The Committee received a presentation from Steve Blezard (RBC) relating to 
Integrated Health and Social Care Neighbourhood Teams. 
 
The presentation outlined the: 
 

 Rationale for integrated neighbourhood teams; 

 Why there were six neighbourhoods in the Borough; 

 The map showing the neighbourhoods; 

 Staff within the Team; 

 Changes that had happened since the Team was formed; 

 Specific Township issues; 
 
Members welcomed the new structure and requested that it be communicated 
more widely. 
 
1. That the presentation be welcomed and noted. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 
OPEN FORUM 
34 The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum: 
 

a) Mellalieu Street – Traffic Calming Measures 
 
The Committee considered questions and comments from Mr Bennett asking for an 
update in regard to the provision of traffic calming measures on Mellalieu Street. 
 
The Highways Officer informed the Committee that he would look into this matter and 
come back to the Committee with proposals on how the issues with speeding traffic 
could be resolved. 
 

b) Sefton Road 
 
The Committee considered questions and comments from Ms Walker and Ms 
Rodgers and other local residents, relating to damage that had been caused to the 
historically important wall and towers on Sefton Road by a HGV accessing a local 
business.  
 
The Council had temporarily made the structure safe but there had been issues with 
establishing ownership for any long term maintenance and repair. 
 
Committee members were supportive of local residents and the repair of the 
historically important structure, which the Council had repaired previously and asked 
the Highways Officer to look at how much repairs would cost and to continue to try to 
establish ownership and liability for the maintenance and repair of the structure going 
forwards. 
 
The Police were involved in the incident relating to the damage done by the HGV and 
Inspector Wood agreed to contact residents with any further update.  
 

c) Archer Park Traffic  
 
Ms Jepson informed the Committee about the concerns of local residents about 
traffic issues in the Archer Park area. The Highways Officer was requested to look 
into what measures could be put in place to alleviate the issues. 
 

d) Age Friendly Council 
 
In reply to a question from Mr Ettenfield about what ‘Age Friendly’ meant to the 
Committee, the Assistant Portfolio Holder for Adult Care, Councillor Dale provided 
information about projects and initiatives both within the Township and Boroughwide 
and also about opportunities for the public to be involved. 
 
MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
35  
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Middleton Township Committee held on 14th 
November 2019 be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DEVOLVED FUNDING AND DEVOLVED 
SERVICES SUB-COMMITTEE 
36  
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and 
Devolved Services Sub-Committee held on 19th December 2019 be approved and 
signed as a correct record. 
 
RESULTS OF RESIDENTS PARKING CONSULTATION - DURNFORD STREET 
AREA, MIDDLETON 
37 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods that 
outlined the results of a consultation on residents parking in the Durnford Street area. 
 
A request was received from Middleton Township for the Council to undertake a 
consultation with local residents of the Durnford Street area of Middleton to gauge 
opinion on a future residents parking scheme.  
 
In recent years concerns have been raised by local residents relating to non-resident 
vehicles parking outside properties in the area during working hours. Although this is 
not illegal and no person has a right to reserve a space on the highway, the practice 
is causing inconvenience to local residents 
 
A consultation leaflet was distributed to all residential properties within the proposed 
zone on 20th August 2019. The deadline for responses was 12th September 2019. 
 
Responses were received from 45.7% of the properties which were consulted, with 
67.78% of respondents voting in support of the scheme and 32.22% voting against.  
The supporters of the scheme represent 30.98% of the total number of consultees. 
 
The report outlined the full results of the consultation. 
 
The Committee considered representations from residents who were supporting a 
residents parking scheme in the area and from residents who had concerns about 
the scheme in its current format. Questions submitted by residents for the Open 
Forum relating to this matter were also considered. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in view of the issues raised by local residents relating to the proposed scheme 
that consideration be deferred to enable further investigation into the issues raised at 
the meeting. 
 
2020 - 2022 HIGHWAYS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
38 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which sought approval of indicative highways work programmes which were 
proposed to take place during the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years.  
 
The programmes included the following –  

 2 year local transport plan (LTP) funded capital programme; 

 2 year bridges and structures capital maintenance programme; 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 

Page 5



No alternatives have been considered. The programme has been developed 
according to DfT guidance and in line with other GM Authorities.   
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the highways work programmes to be delivered in 2020/21 and 2021/22 
as circulated to Members be noted and approved in principle, subject to any 
final amendments being submitted to the Highways Service. 

 
Reasons for the recommendation: 
 
The schemes that have been selected have been put together based on the 
principles of asset management which use network condition data, engineer 
inspections, life cycle planning and cost efficiency to produce the most efficient 
highway improvement over the course of the programmes.  
 
Using Asset management techniques for scheme selection ensures that they are in 
line with recommendations from the Department for Transport (DfT) which enables 
the full funding allocation from the DfT incentive fund scheme. Authorities that are 
deemed not to be carrying out efficient highway improvements can have funding 
reduced and in the case of Rochdale, the maximum reduction would be £410k. 
 
TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2020-2022 
39 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which outlined the Townships Plan for 2020-2022. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022 has now been agreed.  The process 
included carrying out a review of the Council’s values and behaviours which are now 
Proud, Passionate, Pioneering and Open. 
 
In line with the new Corporate Plan, the Townships Plan 2020–2022 has been 
developed around the following priorities: Prosperous People and Places. 
 
Township Chairs and Vice Chairs worked with the Portfolio Holder for 
Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture to produce the new Townships Plan. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
No alternatives to having the Plan were put forward. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the detail included in the Townships Plan 2020-2022 appended to the 
report be noted: 

2. It be noted that the plan has been developed in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder, Township Chairs and Vice Chairs in line with priorities identified in the 
Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022; 

3. That the Plan be approved to allow the Townships to focus on local priorities 
in line with the Council’s key priorities – Prosperous People and Places. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The Townships Plan identifies priorities determined by each Township’s Councillors 
as a focus for action over the next two years. This plan gathers aspirations and ideas 
together as a focus for decision makers, Council Services, partner agencies and the 

Page 6



voluntary and community sector active in the Rochdale Borough. The Townships 
Plan identifies priorities determined by each Township’s Councillors as a focus for 
action over the next two years. This plan gathers aspirations and ideas together as a 
focus for decision makers, Council Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and 
community sector active in the Rochdale Borough. 
 
The Townships Plan 2017-2019 is due to expire. The Townships Plan 2020-2022 
includes objectives identified to meet the priorities identified by each of the five 
Townships. It will also guide and direct and detail the use of devolved budgets, 
including Township Revenue Funds, for the financial years 2019/20, 2020/21 and 
2021/22. 
 
The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan is a live 
document that can evolve and change to meet new opportunities and initiatives, and 
can be updated to reflect changes as we move forward. 
 
 
CLAIM OF FOOTPATH FROM MANCHESTER OLD ROAD TO THE REAR OF 564 
MANCHESTER OLD ROAD, MIDDLETON 
40 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which related to the Claim of Footpath from Manchester Old Road to the Rear of 564 
Manchester Old Road, Middleton. 
 
The report stated that it was considered that no reasonable public rights exist and 
that there is no presumed dedication.  It was recommended that the Council should 
not proceed with a map modification order to add a footpath to the definitive map and 
statement running from Manchester Old Road to the rear of Manchester Old Road, 
Middleton Rochdale. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The alternative was to accept the evidence and proceed with a Definitive Map 
Modification order to add a footpath to the definitive map and statement and to 
ensure a footpath is available for public use. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the Committee does consider that reasonable public rights exist and that 
South Ward Councillors will work with local residents, the wider public and 
Officers towards proceeding with a map modification order to add a footpath 
to the definitive map and statement for the area described within the report 

 
Reasons for the recommendation: 
 
The Committee considers that reasonable public rights do exist and that the Council 
should move forward towards proceeding with a map modification order from 
Manchester Old Road to the Rear of 564 Manchester Old Road, Middleton. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

Report to Middleton Township Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 18th June 2020 
Portfolio Councillor Daalat Ali 

(Cabinet Member for 
Resources) 

Report Author Alison James 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 
Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2020/2021 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.   At the first meeting of the municipal year, the Township Committee is 

required to confirm its delegated decision making arrangements for the 
forthcoming year, as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report and to make 
appointments to Township Sub-Committees (including the Chair and Vice 
Chair) and other bodies as detailed at Appendix 2 to the report. 

 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 That approval is given to the Sub-Committee structure of the Middleton   

Township Committee, comprising the Middleton Township Devolved  
Funding and Services Sub-Committee, and the Middleton Township 
Delegated Sub-Committee and to approve the terms of reference for the two 
Sub-Committees, as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report; 

  
2.2   That appointments made to the Township Committee, Township Sub-   

Committee and other bodies be retained as in the previous Municipal Year 

2019/20, as detailed in Appendix 2. 

 
 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 

exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution, which states 
that: appointments to Township Sub-Committees, Township Working Parties, 
Partnership Arrangements and Local Outside Bodies shall be made at the first 
meeting of the appropriate Township Committee in the new Municipal Year’.  
 
The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take 
a decision.  

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 
The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township. 
 
The Committee has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of 
other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. 

The Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-
Committee currently exercise formal powers, as detailed at Appendix 1, as a 
Sub-Committee for dealing with making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds and the Middleton Delegated Sub-
Committee can, as and when required, make ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the 
Township Committee and for making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The Committee could choose not to appoint sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves but this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. The Committee could also, if it chose to do so, adopt alternative 
Sub-Committee arrangements. 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The Township Committee is requested to confirm its delegation arrangements 

to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. Not required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9



Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. There are no background papers 
associated with this report. 

 

 

For Further Information Contact: Alison James – Governance and 
Committee Services 
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924711 

 

  

Page 10

mailto:alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

Middleton Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee 
 
To consider and determine the use and allocation of funds devolved to the 
Middleton Township Committee, following appropriate local consultation i.e. 

a. Middleton Township Fund 
b. Middleton Township Capital Allocation 
c. Voluntary Sector Grants (where devolved to Township) i.e. Middleton 

Community Centres; 
d. Future devolved funding where referred to it by Middleton Township 

Committee 
-  To ensure that all requirements and restrictions place on any devolved 

funding are met, or are capable of being met, before any decisions are made; 
-  To refer any matter to the Middleton Township Committee for a decision 

where the Sub-Committee considers it appropriate; 
-  To review external funding opportunities and monitor the impact of secured 

external funding, such as Lottery or other external agencies; 
-  To liaise with the other Middleton Township sub-groups and other groups to 

help harmonise the impact of available Township funding to meet the 
Middleton Township Plan, regeneration and social inclusion priorities; 

-  To consider and comment on feedback reports on how previously awarded 
grants have been used; 

-  To approve and undertake commissions for services/projects linked to the 
implementation of the Middleton Township Plan priorities; 

- To implement the corporate devolution strategy; 
- To implement devolution in the identified devolved services, i.e. Highways and 

Engineering, Development Control, Environmental Management (part), 
Community Centres and Libraries; 

-  ensure service plans reflect Middleton needs in respect of devolved services; 
-  To ensure influence is brought to bear on the preparation of service plans to 

better fit Middleton’s needs in respect of the influenced services i.e. Schools, 
Child Care, Learners and Young People, Adult Care, Planning and 
Regulation, Bereavement Services, Waste and Recycling, Regeneration, 
Leisure Trust, Strategic Housing, Revenues and Benefits and Customer 
Services. 

-  To approve  all proposals made by the identified sub-groups, including any 
commissioning or plans to move resources, or extra funding implications, 
linked to any aspect of the implementation of the Middleton Township Plan;   

-  To monitor the implementation of the rest of the Middleton Township Plan via 
the sub-groups of the township; 

-  To compile future versions of the Middleton Township Plan for approval by the 
Middleton Township Committee. 

 
Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee 

 
The Sub-Committee currently exercises a small range of formal powers 
derived from the Scheme of Delegation as an 'urgency' Committee for the 
Township Committee.   

 

Page 11



Appendix 2 

Members are asked to consider appointments to the following Sub-Committees and 
to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2020/21 Municipal Year.  
 
Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee 
 
All Members of the Township Committee were appointed in 2019/20. 
 
Councillor Donna Williams – Chair 
Councillor Smith – Vice-Chair 
 
Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee  
 
This Sub-Committee was not appointed in 2019/20 and the matters and functions were 
delegated to the Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee 
or the Chair and Vice Chair of the Township Committee as necessary. 
 
The Township Committee is asked (if required) to appoint substitute Members to the 
Township’s Sub-Committees. 
 
Substitute Members 
 
The options available to the Township Committee for substitution arrangements for 
Members of Township Committees comprise: - 
 
(a) An absent Member may only call for a substitute Member from the same  
political group 
(b) Where appointments are made on a Ward basis, to allow for a Ward 
substitute from any political group to be identified by the absent Member 
(c) To allow for a substitute Member from any political group to be identified 
by the absent Member. 
 
The Township Committee is asked to indicate its determined substitution 
arrangements when appointing Sub-Committee memberships. 
 
In any event, the number of substitute Members appointed by a political group to a 
Sub-Committee cannot exceed the number of substantive Members appointed, up to 
a maximum of three. 
 
Township Working Groups 
 
Middleton Township Environment and Culture Forum 
 
All Middleton Township Committee Members were appointed in 2019/20. 
 
Councillor Donna Williams (Chair) 
 
 
 

Page 12



Middleton Regeneration and Transport Working Party 
 
All Middleton Township Committee Members were appointed in 2019/20. 
 
Councillor Donna Williams (Chair) 
 
 
Other Bodies 
 
Langley Estate Strategy Group 
 
In 2019/20, Councillor Smith was appointed and the Substitute Member was Councillor 
Burke 
 
Middleton Town Centre Management Company and Middleton Market Company:  
 
Councillors Donna Williams and Nolan were appointed in 2019/20  
 
Brentwood Day Centre – Management Committee  
 
Councillor Donna Williams was appointed in 2019/20 
 
Highways Champion  
 
Councillor West was appointed in 2019/20 
 
Township Planning Panel 
 
Councillors Smith, Robinson, Dale, Boriss, Nolan and West were appointed in 2019/20 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

Report to Middleton Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 18 June 2020 
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture 
Report Author Sharron Worrall 
Public/Private Document Public Document 

 
 

Middleton Township Funds Review 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2019/20 and 

provides options for the allocation of funds in 2020/21. 
  
1.2 Members are asked to approve Middleton Township Funds allocation to 

funding streams, terms and conditions, and agree delegation arrangements 
concerning funding decisions. 

 

2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 

Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2019/20 (Appendix 
1 and 2). 

  
2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2019/20 

(Appendix 3). 
  
2.3 Members approve the allocation of Middleton Township Funds to funding 

streams in 2020/21 (Appendix 4). 
  
2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Middleton Township revenue 

and capital funds for 2020/21 (Appendix 5). 
  
2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Middleton Township 

Funds 2020/21 as detailed at 4.6 of this report. 
 

3. Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 Management of the Middleton Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton 

Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee. 

  

3.2 Middleton Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 

  

3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Middleton 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



4. Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 

Township revenue and capital funds 2019/20 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2019/20 as agreed with Accountancy will be 
reported to the next scheduled funding committee. 

  
4.2 A review of Middleton Township revenue and capital funds has been 

undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2020/21. 

  
4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 

identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Middleton 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a 
difference to the local community with improvements to local facilities, 
increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  
All successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that 
they complete a project evaluation form. 

  

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2019/20 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2020/21 (Appendix 4). 

  

4.5 Terms and conditions for Middleton Township revenue and capital funds 
have been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and 
conditions for 2020/21 (Appendix 5). 

  

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Middleton 
Township Funds 2020/21 as follows: 
 
a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair 

and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee, may make decisions 
on the allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any 
disputes concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next 
Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub 
Committee for decision. 

b) Middleton Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub 
Committee for decision. 

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee to 
ensure all Members are aware of projects that have been approved. 

  

  

Page 15



4.7 Alternatives Considered 

  

 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions. 

 

5. Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Middleton Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 

expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2019/20 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Middleton Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2020/21 in Appendix 4. 

  

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Middleton Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources. 

  

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees. 

 

6. Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report. 
  
6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 

will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in 
line with the identified priorities. 

  
6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 

meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet 
those priorities. 

 

7. Consultation 

 
7.1 Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee 

receives regular monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  All proposals 
will to be consulted on as appropriate with Members, residents and other 
stakeholders. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

None N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall 
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924802 

 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £  % Actual 
Spend 

 % Actual + 
Committed 

Budget b/f 2018/19 48,141 42.45% 74.79%
Base Budget 2019/20 92,800 
Income/Adjustments 2019/20 - 
Total budget for 2019/20 140,941 
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 59,832 
Commitments 45,572 
Total Actual + Commitments 105,404 
Budget Remaining 2019/20 35,537 

Forecast Outturn 140,941 
Potential over/underspend - 

Funds
 Budget

b/f 2018/19
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2019/20

£ 

 Income/ 
Adjustments 

£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

£ 

 Committed
£ 

 Actuals
£ 

 Virement 
within 

Township 
Funds

£ 

 Virement 
to Services

£ 

 Total
£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2019/20
      £ 

6,882 5,000      - 11,882       761 1,200        - - 1,961       9,921 
12,839 5,000      - 17,839       400 4,932        - - 5,332       12,507 
9,750 5,000      - 14,750       5,400           127           - 2,830          8,357       6,394 
4,676 5,000      - 9,676         4,178           2,398        - 2,747          9,322       354 
3,508 1,700      - 5,208         400 - - - 400          4,808 
4,843 35,000    - 39,843       29,632         10,211      - - 39,843     0 

North Middleton Ward
South Middleton Ward
East Middleton Ward
West Middleton Ward 
Hopwood Hall Ward 
Events
Projects 5,643 36,100    - 41,743       4,801           24,840      - 10,548        40,189     1,555 
Total 48,141 92,800    - 140,941     45,572         43,708      - 16,124        105,404   35,537 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

P
age 17



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £  % Actual 
Spend 

 % Actual + 
Committed 

Budget b/f 2018/19 134,888    68.54% 91.42%
Base Budget 2019/20 86,800      
Income/Adjustments 2019/20 - 
Total budget for 2019/20 221,688    
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 151,955    
Commitments 50,718      
Total Actual + Commitments 202,673    
Budget Remaining 2019/20 19,015      

Forecast Outturn 221,688    
Potential over/underspend - 

Funds
 Budget

b/f 2018/19
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2019/20

£ 

 Income/ 
Adjustments 

£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2019/20

£ 

 Committed
£ 

 Actuals
£ 

 Virement 
within 

Township 
Funds

£ 

 Virement 
to Services

£ 

 Total
£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2019/20
      £ 

2,254        4,500       - 6,754 - - - 6,754 6,754           - 
12,627      4,500       - 17,127 10,000         (552)         - 1,342 10,790         6,337          
17,176      4,500       - 21,676 1,907           - - 19,769 21,676         - 
8,737        4,500       - 13,237 - (38)           - 10,000 9,962           3,275          
5,600        1,500       - 7,100 - - - - - 7,100          

10,937      - - 10,937 - 10,937     - - 10,937         - 

North Middleton Ward
South Middleton Ward
East Middleton Ward
West Middleton Ward 
Hopwood Hall Ward 
Armed Forces Projects

77,557      67,300     - 144,857 38,811         28,424     - 75,319 142,554       2,303          
Total 134,888    86,800     - 221,688 50,718         38,771     - 113,184 202,673       19,015        

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

P
age 18



1 

 
APPENDIX 3 
 
 
MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2019/20 
 
REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Projects Fund £36,100 

Base Budget 
 

b/f 2018/19 
£5,643 

 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Middleton Township. 
 
This fund was used to support 13 projects during 2019/20 consisting of 10 community projects and 3 environmental 
projects.  The variety of projects funded included Link4Life’s functional fitness course to improve the health and 
wellbeing of residents with activities to improve postural stability, strength, flexibility, and balance to promote greater 
independence and reduce the risk of falls in the future; supply and planting of additional shrubs and the spreading of 
bark in Middleton Gardens shrub beds to enhance the appearance of the site; contribution to the Middleton Town 
Centre Management function to increase business involvement and support annual events such as Ockoberfest, 
Spooky Saturday, Summer Fun Days, Summer Sizzler and Small Business Saturday; provision of chairs and 
refreshments for the Remembrance Sunday service; ‘Skills4Sport’ programme offers free access to quality training 
and work experience leading to paid work in the Sports and Leisure Sector.  The programme identifies those most at 
risk of remaining in economically inactive situations and supports them into a work environment and employment 
whilst encouraging a healthy lifestyle and volunteering to benefit the local community; provision of new flag with a 
Middleton Township Crest to be flown on the flag pole located in Jubilee Park, Middleton; Rochdale Hornets Sporting 
Foundation’s TRY programme that will provide young people with the opportunity to participate in a series of high 
quality rugby league afterschool coaching sessions for 27 weeks (extra-curricular) in Middleton primary and 
secondary schools; planting of 14 Himalayan birch trees in the grassed areas around Middleton Gardens to block or 
impede wind from the ground level to the treetops within the market area; contribution towards Fit, Feed & Read at 
Langley Library that aimed to improve the physical/mental health and wellbeing of local children with the provision of a 
meal during the summer holidays, fitness sessions and reading activities; tree planting scheme with a mixture of 
larger ornamental trees for formal sites and smaller native trees for woodland sites to provide a significant contribution 
to local habitats and green spaces in Middleton; contribution towards Middleton Holiday @ Home Fit and Fed 2020 for 
children and families to be organised by Link4Life throughout the summer consisting of a variety of sports, games, 
pulse raising activities as well as arts and crafts themed sessions. 
 
Committed funds of £4,801 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund receives a base budget of £39,028 in 2020/21 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

P
age 19



2 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Events Fund £35,000 

Base Budget 
 

b/f 2018/19 
£4,843 

The Events Fund provides a budget to resource a variety of community events and activities across Middleton 
Township for the benefit and enjoyment of the local community. 
 
The events funded have included Middleton Holiday @ Home Fit and Fed 2020 that will provide leisure opportunities 
for children and families throughout the summer holidays; May Day 2019 festival that celebrated the bank holiday with 
traditional Maypole and Morris dancing, performances from local brass bands, charity and community stalls and family 
entertainment; Middfest 2019 family friendly summer community event with attractions and activities for local people 
from across Middleton and Middleton Town Centre Christmas Lights Switch On event 2019 in Middleton Gardens that 
provided entertainment for the enjoyment of the local community and attracted visitors and shoppers to the town 
centre. 
Committed funds of £29,632 will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund has a base budget of £30,000 in 2020/21. 

North Middleton 
Ward 

£5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£6,882 
 

Each Middleton Township Ward received £5,000 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £1,700) to allocate to smaller 
projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local 
community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that 
necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors identifying projects and approval being sought from the 
Middleton Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
These funds were used to support a variety of projects during 2019/20: 
 
North Middleton Ward - 4 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were Historic Cheapside’s 
community gardening group who planned to improve the corner of Morton Street/Bardsley Street with the planting of 
snowdrops/bluebells to create a floral display; contribution towards the costs to enable two young talented dancers to 
compete in the World Championships; installation of a bollard on John Lee Fold to prevent damage to the frontage of 
a business premises from HGVs; collection and storage of recovered York stone paving. 
Committed funds of £761 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 
South Middleton Ward - 3 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were Friends of Alkrington Woods 
who acquired basic hand tools and safety equipment to enable them to maintain the natural regeneration of native 
species in the woodland and enhance the wildlife habitats and educational area; contribution towards the costs to 
enable two young talented dancers to compete in the World Championships; startup for the Alkrington Garden Village 
Food Co that aims to create an urban farm and café which utilises the skills and abilities of local people, address 
social isolation and loneliness and provide opportunities for inter-generational cooperation with primary school 
children. 
Committed funds of £400 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 

South Middleton 
Ward 

£5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£12,839 

P
age 20



3 

 
 
REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
East Middleton 
Ward 

£5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£9,750 
 

East Middleton Ward - 5 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were Fit, Feed & Read at Junction 
Library that aims to improve the physical/mental health and wellbeing of local children with the provision of a meal 
during the summer holidays, fitness sessions and reading activities; supply and installation of signage on Stuart Street 
to deter students using this route to and from Middleton Technical School and causing a disturbance to elderly 
residents in the area; removal of used fluorescent tubes from Junction Community Centre's store room for 
disposal/recycling; contribution towards the costs to enable two young talented dancers to compete in the World 
Championships; design and production of calendars to promote Junction Community Centre's events and activities in 
2019/20. 
Committed funds of £5,400 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 
West Middleton Ward - 6 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were Fit, Feed & Read at Langley 
Library that aims to improve the physical/mental health and wellbeing of local children with the provision of a meal 
during the summer holidays, fitness sessions and reading activities; provision of rucksacks to local children 
participating in Fit, Feed & Read to carry their books, crafts made during the sessions, sports kits and free drinks 
bottle; equipment and consumables for Bowlee Community Association to create a base in Bowlee Pavilion for 
administrative support for their projects/activities with a focus on healthy lifestyles with an environmental sustainable 
ethos for the benefit of the local community; cleaning of boulders located in Bowlee Community Park to remove moss 
and discolouration using a non-chemical process to show the decorative designs carved into the boulders; 
contribution towards the costs to enable two young talented dancers to compete in the World Championships; bulb 
planting in Bowlee Community Park organised by the Friends of group for a floral display to enhance the beauty of 
this valued community green space. 
Committed funds of £4,178 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward - 1 project was supported.  The project awarded funds was a contribution towards the costs to 
enable two talented young dancers to compete in the World Championships. 
Committed funds of £400 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 

West Middleton 
Ward 

£5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£4,676 
 

Hopwood Hall 
Ward 

£1,700 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£3,508 
 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund receives a base budget of £5,000 (except Hopwood Hall receives pro rata budget of £1,700) in 2020/21. 

P
age 21



4 

 
CAPITAL FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Capital Fund £67,300 

Base Budget 
 

£77,557 
b/f 2018/19 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver a range of projects that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities in 2019/20.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council 
Officers and the local community. 
 
This fund was used to support 19 projects during 2019/20 consisting of 5 community projects and 14 
environmental/highways projects.  The variety of projects funded included a Traffic Regulation Order prohibiting the 
vehicular use of Peach Bank and enforced with a raised kerbed area with bollards; No Waiting restrictions on 
Stannycliffe Lane opposite Boarshaw Community Primary School to address complaints about school traffic; repair of 
the Birch Fountain and Horse Trough Grade II listed structure designed by Middleton Architect Edgar Wood and its 
relocated to the junction of Heywood Old Road/Langley Lane to create a feature of interest within Birch Village and 
secure the future of the structure; provision of audio/visual and lighting equipment for the Lighthouse Project 
Community Hub's conference and events room to enable social events/activities to be delivered to reduce isolation, 
support health and wellbeing and develop stronger social connections with the local community; installation of barriers 
along a footpath from Don Street to Hereford Way and Hilton Fold Lane, Middleton to prohibit the use of this route by 
motorbikes causing a hazard to users of this right of way; review existing parking restrictions along Lodge Street, 
Middleton and introduction of waiting restrictions; installation of a flagpole in Jubilee Park to display flags for events 
and special occasions; introduction of waiting restrictions on the west side of Nowell Road, Middleton as school traffic 
is causing obstructions and a hazard to pedestrians; contribution to Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale’s project to 
enhance the habitat of Boarshaw Clough Nature Reserve involving opening up the area by coppicing trees, 
installation of a boardwalk and a weir, creation of a fish spawning pool, pollard large Popular and clear vegetation, 
clean/edge Oak timber fixtures and remove/replace fishing pegs; Middleton Gymnastics Club refurbishment of the 
fitness suite and toilet facilities to enhance the use of the building’s space for new equipment and services to increase 
membership and improve the facilities for members; improvements to Alkrington Wood entrance at Riverside Park 
consisting of creating a MOT path, installation of two standard metal benches along the path leading into Riverside 
Park and a notice board leading into Alkrington Wood; traffic calming measures on Ashness Drive Styhead Drive, 
Ravenglass Drive, Causey Drive and part of Martindale Crescent, Middleton consisting of the construction of 
approximately twelve round top humps and a legal order to reduce traffic speeds; installation of pedestrian dropped 
kerbs on Grimshaw Lane and Bowness Road to improve accessibility; construction of two round top road humps on 
Baytree Lane, Middleton between the railway bridge and Mills Hill Road to form part of a new 20mph zone; 
replacement of the existing pedal cycles that are no longer fit for purpose with four electric hybrid cycles to enable the 
Middleton Neighbourhood Policing Team to achieve increased coverage of the Middleton area to protect the local 
community and prevent crime; construction of a zebra crossing at the junction of Kingsway and Kirkway, Middleton 
and introduction of the associated parking restrictions to deter dangerous/inconsiderate parking in area. 
 
Committed funds of £38,811 and unallocated funds of £2,303 will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund is allocated a base budget of £67,300 in 2019/20 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

P
age 22



5 

 
CAPITAL FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
North Middleton 
Ward 

£4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£2,254 

Each Middleton Township Ward received £4,500 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £1,500) to allocate to smaller 
capital projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 
local community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with some issues that 
necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors identifying projects and approval being sought from the 
Middleton Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
Funds used to support projects during 2019/20: 
 
North Middleton Ward - 2 projects were supported.  Funds were approved for the installation of two galvanised street 
lighting columns with LED lanterns on Glenwood Drive, Middleton with Electricity North West electrical service 
connection to enhance the lighting in the area and improve public safety; contribution to the review existing parking 
restrictions along Lodge Street, Middleton and introduction of waiting restrictions. 
 
South Middleton Ward – 2 projects were supported.  Funds were approved for a contribution towards the construction 
of a zebra crossing at the junction of Kingsway and Kirkway, Middleton and introduction of the associated parking 
restrictions to deter dangerous/inconsiderate parking in area; installation of a sign at the entrance to Alkrington Wood 
to create a welcoming and attractive access into the nature reserve. 
Committed funds of £10,000 and unallocated funds of £6,337 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 
East Middleton Ward - 3 projects were supported.  Funds were approved for the installation of knee rail fencing 
including a barrier gate and bollards at King George’s Playing Field to address the issue of anti-social 
behaviour/vehicle access to this community recreation area; reconstruction of a section of flagged footway on Brierley 
Drive, Middleton to improve pedestrian safety and appearance; contribution towards the construction of two round top 
road humps on Baytree Lane, Middleton between the railway bridge and Mills Hill Road to form part of a new 20mph 
zone. 
Committed funds of £1,907 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 
West Middleton Ward - 3 projects were supported.  Funds were approved for a contribution towards traffic calming 
measures on Ashness Drive Styhead Drive, Ravenglass Drive, Causey Drive and part of Martindale Crescent, 
Middleton consisting of the construction of approximately twelve round top humps and a legal order to reduce traffic 
speeds; installation of a litter bin on Alston Walk; installation of a drainage system on Wood Street adjacent to All 
Saints & Martyrs Church wall to alleviate water run-off from St Mary's RC Primary School grounds and flooding. 
Unallocated funds of £3,275 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward – No projects were supported. 
Unallocated funds of £7,100 at year end will be carried forward to 2020/21. 

South Middleton 
Ward 

£4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£12,627 

East Middleton 
Ward 

£4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£17,176 

West Middleton 
Ward 

£4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£8,737 

Hopwood Hall 
Ward 

£1,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2018/19 

£5,600 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund is allocated a base budget of £4,500 (except Hopwood Hall receives pro rata budget of £1,500) in 
2020/21. 

P
age 23



6 

 
 
CAPITAL FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Armed Forces 
Fund 

b/f 2018/19 
£10,937 

Middleton Township received a budget of £20,000 in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing existing memorials and 
introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-18). 
 
Funds were approved to create a plaque to be placed in Middleton Memorial Garden depicting a scene from the First 
World War to be cast in bronze, detail in relief, etched and polished. 

 

P
age 24



APPENDIX 4

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2020/21

REVENUE FUNDS 2020/21 = £136,300

OPTION 1 - REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2019/20 Base Budget Income/
Adjustments

Total Budget 
2020/21 Committed

Budget 
Available 
2020/21

Notes

Projects Fund £4,801 £39,028 £0 £43,829 £4,801 £39,028 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township's priorities.  
Base budget of £39,028 with retained budget of £4,801 (see committed column) 
for projects approved pre 2020/21.

Events Fund £29,632 £30,000 £0 £59,632 £29,632 £30,000 Fund for Middleton Township to allocate to events during 2020/21 for the benefit 
of the local community.  Base budget of £30,000 with retained budget of £29,632 
(see committed column) for events approved pre 2020/21.

North Middleton 
Ward Fund

£761 £5,000 £0 £5,761 £761 £5,000 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond 
to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Middleton 
Ward Fund

£400 £5,000 £0 £5,400 £400 £5,000 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond 
to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Middleton 
Ward Fund

£5,400 £5,000 £0 £10,400 £5,400 £5,000 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Middleton 
Ward Fund

£4,178 £5,000 £0 £9,178 £4,178 £5,000 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond 
to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 
Ward Fund

£400 £1,700 £0 £2,100 £400 £1,700 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £45,572 £90,728 £0 £136,300

Page 1 of 4

P
age 25



OPTION 2 - REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2019/20 Base Budget Income/
Adjustments

Total Budget 
2020/21 Committed

Budget 
Available 
2020/21

Notes

Projects Fund £4,801 £49,878 £0 £54,679 £4,801 £49,878 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township's priorities.  
Base budget of £49,878 with retained budget of £4,801 (see committed column) 
for projects approved pre 2020/21.

Events Fund £29,632 £30,000 £0 £59,632 £29,632 £30,000 Fund for Middleton Township to allocate to events during 2020/21 for the benefit 
of the local community.  Base budget of £30,000 with retained budget of £29,632 
(see committed column) for events approved pre 2020/21.

North Middleton 
Ward Fund

£761 £2,500 £0 £3,261 £761 £2,500 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond 
to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Middleton 
Ward Fund

£400 £2,500 £0 £2,900 £400 £2,500 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond 
to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Middleton 
Ward Fund

£5,400 £2,500 £0 £7,900 £5,400 £2,500 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Middleton 
Ward Fund

£4,178 £2,500 £0 £6,678 £4,178 £2,500 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond 
to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 
Ward Fund

£400 £850 £0 £1,250 £400 £850 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £45,572 £90,728 £0 £136,300

Page 2 of 4

P
age 26



CAPITAL FUNDS 2020/21 = £156,532

OPTION 1 - CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2019/20 Base Budget Income/
Adjustments

Total Budget 
2020/21 Committed

Budget 
Available 
2020/21

Notes

Projects Fund £41,113 £67,300 £0 £108,413 £38,811 £69,602 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the Township's  priorities.  
Base budget of £67,300 with retained budget of £38,811 (see committed column)
for projects approved pre 2020/21.

North Middleton 
Ward Fund

£0 £4,500 £0 £4,500 £0 £4,500 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Middleton 
Ward Fund

£16,337 £4,500 £0 £20,837 £10,000 £10,837 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Middleton 
Ward Fund

£1,907 £4,500 £0 £6,407 £1,907 £4,500 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Middleton 
Ward Fund

£3,275 £4,500 £0 £7,775 £0 £7,775 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 
Ward Fund

£7,100 £1,500 £0 £8,600 £0 £8,600 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £69,732 £86,800 £0 £156,532

Page 3 of 4

P
age 27



OPTION 2 - CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2019/20 Base Budget Income/
Adjustments

Total Budget 
2020/21 Committed

Budget 
Available 
2020/21

Notes

Projects Fund £41,113 £77,050 £0 £118,163 £38,811 £79,352 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the Township's  priorities.  
Base budget of £77,050 with retained budget of £38,811 (see committed column)
for projects approved pre 2020/21.

North Middleton 
Ward Fund

£0 £2,250 £0 £2,250 £0 £2,250 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Middleton 
Ward Fund

£16,337 £2,250 £0 £18,587 £10,000 £8,587 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Middleton 
Ward Fund

£1,907 £2,250 £0 £4,157 £1,907 £2,250 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Middleton 
Ward Fund

£3,275 £2,250 £0 £5,525 £0 £5,525 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 
Ward Fund

£7,100 £750 £0 £7,850 £0 £7,850 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 
local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £69,732 £86,800 £0 £156,532

Page 4 of 4

P
age 28



 

Form MT02 1

 

MMIIDDDDLLEETTOONN  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS    22002200//2211 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 
 

Middleton Township Committee is proud of Middleton’s past and wants to ensure that its future is as rich.  At 
the heart of all the Committee’s decisions is the vision to create a friendly, clean and safe town, with diverse, 
skilled and harmonious communities proud of their heritage and looking towards a prosperous future as part 
of the Manchester City Region. 
 

Middleton Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct 
benefit to the community and the environment of Middleton.  Councillors, Council Services, partner 
agencies, third sector organisations and forums/working parties are invited to submit projects on relevant 
application forms for funding from Middleton Township funds. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Middleton Township priorities of: 
 
 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 
communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 
work and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

2. What can be funded 
 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 
b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 
c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 
d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 
e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 
f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, 

fencing, lights, CCTV, etc. 
g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 
h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 
i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognise the contribution made by the Township. 
j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 
l) Talented young athletes who reside in Middleton competing at national/international level supported by 

a recognised sporting body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 
 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces 
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 
c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit. 
d) Promoting religious or political causes. 
e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 
f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 
g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 
h) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 
i) Parties/day trips out (local disability group trips may be considered). 
j) Purchase of alcohol. 

APPENDIX 5

Page 29



Form MT02 2

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded.
l) Purchasing of vehicles.
m) Purchasing insurance.

4. Terms and conditions

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council.
b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the 

Township priorities.
c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 

account.
d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Services Sub Committee’s discretion.

e) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved 
Funding and Services Sub Committee’s discretion.

f) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs.

g) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their project/event are in place.

h) Applicants are responsible for ensuring infection prevention and controls relating to the project/event 
are in place and comply with the Government and Public Health guidelines.

i) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 
Council owned land.

j) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have 
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe.

k) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 
ensure adequate insurance is in place.

l) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 
by Township Funds.

m) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to.

n) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant.
o) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy invoices/

receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as detailed in 
the application form.  This information must be provided to Middleton Township Office within one month 
of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return the Project Evaluation Form and invoices/receipts will 
result in restrictions being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming 
of the grant monies.

p) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Middleton Township on successive occasions need to 
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources.

q) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

5. Decision Making Process

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation.
b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and

conditions of the fund.
c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be
requested to supply additional information.

d) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000
or less on agreement of the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee.

e) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek theirPage 30



 

Form MT02 3

support and submit for decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.  Any disputes 
concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Services Sub Committee for decision. 

f) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Middleton Township 
Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee meeting. 

g) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 
not be re-elected. 

h) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 
specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 
maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 
provider and the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee prior to incurring 
any additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 
the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 
with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 
variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 
the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide 
not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the 
Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 
Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 
of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 
payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service 
provider, withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service 
provider unless agreed otherwise with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub 
Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

Page 31


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments
	7 Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Middleton Township Funds Review


